
 

 
 

  

 

Alcohol and Entertainment 
Licensing Sub-Committee (B) 
 

Wednesday 2 April 2014 at 10.00 am 
Board Room 6 - Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, 
Wembley HA9 0FJ 
 
 
Membership: 
 
Members first alternates second alternates 
Councillors: Councillors: Councillors: 
   
Chohan (Chair) Allie Beswick 
Arnold Mrs Bacchus Ogunro 
HM Patel   Sneddon 
 
 
For further information contact: Toby Howes, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
020 8937 1307, toby.howes@brent.gov.uk 
 
For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit: 

democracy.brent.gov.uk 
 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 
 

Public Document Pack



 

2 
 

Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 
Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on this agenda. 
 

 

2 Application by 'Location Cafe' for a premises licence for '232 High 
Road' (London, NW10 2NX) pursuant to the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003  

 

1 - 24 

 This application was adjourned at the meeting of Alcohol and 
Entertainment Licensing Sub-Committee (B) on 27 February 2014. 
 

 

3 Application by Memik Cagin for a variation of the premises licence 
for 'Mir Food Centre' (451-453 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 9DY) 
pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003  

 

25 - 56 

 
 

� Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting. 
• The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 

members of the public. 
 

 



 
 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

Application for New Premises Licence 
 
 
1. The Application 
 
Name of Applicant: Location Cafe 
  
Name & Address of Premises: 232 High Road NW10 2NX 
  
Applicants Agent:  
  
 
 
The application is for a new premises licence: 
  
1 For Late Night Refreshments from 23.00 hours until 04.00 hours Monday - Sunday 

 
The premises will be open from 07.00 hours until 04.00 hours 

 
 
2. Background 
 

None 
  
3. Promotion of the Licensing Objectives 
 
 See page 13 of the application. 
 
 
4. Relevant Representations 
  
 Metropolitan Police 
 
 
5. Interested Parties 
 
 None 
 
 
6. Policy Considerations 
 
 Paragraph Nos:  7.2 8.1 – 8.4 
 
 8.1 Where responsible authorities and interested parties do not raise any relevant 

representations regarding the application made to the council, the council will grant the 
licence or certificate subject only to the conditions that are consistent with the operating 
schedule or club operating schedule and any mandatory conditions prescribed in the Act 
itself. 

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 8.2 Where responsible authorities and interested parties raise relevant representations, 
the council may, if it is satisfied at a hearing or otherwise, impose conditions where 
considered necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.   

 
 8.3 Any conditions attached by the council or submitted by the applicant must focus on 

the direct impact of the activities taking place at licensed premises, on those attending the 
premises and residents and persons working in the area.  

 
 8.4 Any conditions attached to licences will be tailored to the individual needs, style and 

characteristics of the particular premises and events concerned and will be drawn from a 
‘model pool of conditions’ (where appropriate) to the particular premises. 

 
 
7. Associated Papers 
       
 A. Copy of Application Form 
 B. Copy of Police Objection 
 C. Copy of Premises Plan 
 D. Police Statement 
  
  

Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



 

 

 QK - Brent Borough 
QD - Licensing Department 

  The Licensing Officer 

Health Safety and Licensing 

London Borough of Brent 

Brent Civic Centre 

Engineers Way  

Wembley 

HA9 7FJ 

 
Wembley Police Station 
603 Harrow Road 
Wembley 
HA0 2HH 
Telephone: 020 8733 3206 
Facsimile: 020 8733 3101 
Email: 
nicola.mcdonald@met.police.
uk 
www.met.police.uk 
Your ref:  
Our ref: 01QK/685/13/157 
18th Dec 2013 
  

Dear Sir/Madam 
Police representations to the application for a premises licence at ‘Location Café’ 232 High 
Road, NW10 2NX. 

I certify that I have considered the application shown above and I wish to make 
representations that the likely effect of the grant of the application is detrimental to the 
Crime and Disorder Licensing Objective for the reasons indicated below. 

Officer: Nicola McDoanld  

             Licensing Constable157QK 

An officer of the Metropolitan Police, in whose area the premises are situated, who is 
authorised for the purposes of exercising its statutory function as a ‘Responsible Authority’ 
under the Licensing Act 2003.  Police representations are mainly connected with the 
prevention of crime and disorder and public safety. 

The application has been made for a premises licence under section 19 of the Act.   

Page 4 of this application describes the premises as a place for the public to enjoy tea, 
coffee, soft drinks and sandwiches.  Unfortunately this is not what I discovered during a visit 
to the location. 

On Saturday 14th December 2013 at approximately 2030 hours I attended the venue with my 
colleague PC Lewis-Evans.  Entering the premises from the main High Road the venue 
looked closed as there were no customers in the front room, however I could smell the 
distinct pungent aroma of shisha smoke.  I introduced myself to a Somali male who was 
standing behind the serving counter. He was not the owner or the manger just ‘a friend’ 
helping out.  I then opened a solid wooden door at the rear of the front room and discovered 
approximately 6 customers sitting in a room (named as Café on the plans submitted with the 
application) watching football on a large screen television.  I walked through this room; the 
smoke smell was stronger and thicker.  I passed a kitchen (named as utility room on the 
plans submitted with the application) to my right that contained over 20 shisha smoking 
hookahs, shisha smoking pipes hanging on the wall and tubs of shisha tobacco.  There is an Page 17



external door leading from the utility room as I opened it I saw a chiminea stacked with 
burning coals to feed the Hookahs.  As I entered the back room there were approximately a 
dozen males sitting around smoking shisha.  This room was fully enclosed.  There are 
shutters at the rear of this room, even if they had been open this room would have been 
more than 50% enclosed.  The only means of escape was the front entrance door.  If a fire 
had broken out in the front of the building customers would have been trapped.  Standing in 
this room I could feel the effects of the smoke and possible carbon monoxide. 

I waited at the front of the venue for approximately half hour for the manger to return.  During 
this time I never saw any food preparation.  The kitchens main function is for shisha 
preparation.  The rear shutters were opened and the Shisha Hookhahs were removed to the 
kitchen area.   

This venue is breaching Section 8 of the Health Act.  The venue has planning permission for 
A2 (office) use and has no building regularization certificate (structural safety). 

Police are objecting to the premises licence application, this venue is designed specifically to 
breach legislation and put public safety at risk. 

I reserve the right to bring further evidence to the hearing should any arise between now and 
then.  

 Yours sincerely 
 
Nicola McDonald 157QK     
Licensing Constable 
Brent Police 
 
 
 

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Location Café, 232 High Road, London 
 

Plan as submitted 

 
  

P
age 21



Location Café, 232 High Road, London 

What the premises actually looks like 

MALES 

FEMALES 

SHISHA PIPE 
STORE 
ROOM 

POTENTIAL 
SHISHA 
STORE  

ALLEYWAY 
 
POTENTIAL  
REAR 
ENTERANCE  

P
age 22



 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

Application for a Variation to Premises Licence 
 
 
1. The Application 
 
Name of Applicant: Mr Memik Cagin 
  
Name & Address of Premises: Mir Food Centre 451-453 Kingsbury road NW9 9DY 
  
Applicants Agent: NARTs 53 Stoke Newington High street N16 8EL 
  
 
 
The variation application is for the sale of alcohol for 24 hours a day.  
 
 
2. Background 
 

The current licence permits sale of alcohol from 08:00 until Midnight Monday - Sunday 
 
The Licensee and the Designated Premises Supervisor is Mr Memik Cagin 

 
 
3. Promotion of the Licensing Objectives 
 
 See page 19 of the attached application. 
 
 
4. Relevant Representations 
 
 Representations were received from the Metropolitan Police who are objecting to the 

extension of hours 
 
5. Interested Parties 
 
 None 
 
 
6. Policy Considerations 
 
 Paragraph Nos:  8.1 – 8.4 
 
 8.1 Where responsible authorities and interested parties do not raise any relevant 

representations regarding the application made to the council, the council will grant the 
licence or certificate subject only to the conditions that are consistent with the operating 
schedule or club operating schedule and any mandatory conditions prescribed in the Act 
itself. 

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 25



 8.2 Where responsible authorities and interested parties raise relevant representations, 
the council may, if it is satisfied at a hearing or otherwise, impose conditions where 
considered necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.   

 
 8.3 Any conditions attached by the council or submitted by the applicant must focus on 

the direct impact of the activities taking place at licensed premises, on those attending the 
premises and residents and persons working in the area.  

 
 8.4 Any conditions attached to licences will be tailored to the individual needs, style and 

characteristics of the particular premises and events concerned and will be drawn from a 
‘model pool of conditions’ (where appropriate) to the particular premises. 

 
 
7. Associated Papers 
       
 A. Copy of Application Form 
 B. Copy of representation 
 C. Location map 
  
 

Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



  

  

 Brent Borough 
Licensing Department 

  The Licensing Officer 
Health, Safety and Licensing 
Brent Civic Centre  
Engineers Way 
Wembley 
HA9 7FJ 
 
 
Your ref:   
Our ref: 01QK/20/14/598 
 

 
Brent Civic Centre 
Engineers Way 
Wembley 
HA9 7FJ 
Tel: 020 8733 3206 
07717555787 
Email:Sam.Lewis-
Evans@met.police.uk 
www.met.police.uk 
 
Date 14th February 2014 
 

 
Police representation to Vary the Premises Licence at MIR Food Centre, 451-
453 Kingsbury Road, Kingsbury, NW9 9DY 
 
I certify that I have considered the application shown above and I wish to make 
representations that the likely effect of the grant of the application is detrimental to 
the Council’s Licensing Objectives for the reasons indicated below. 
 
Officer:  Sam Lewis-Evans 
Licensing Constable PC 598QK 
 
An officer of the Metropolitan Police, in whose area the premises are situated, who is 
authorised for the purposes of exercising its statutory function as a ‘Responsible 
Authority’ under the Licensing Act 2003. 
The application has been made for a premises licence under section 34 of the act.  
 
On 22nd January 2014 I visited the venue as part of the consultation process. During 
my visit I noticed that there was a large number of high strength beers, lagers and 
ciders on display, this is breach of already existing condition 4. 
 
“No high strength beers, lagers and ciders above 6.5% ABV shall be stocked” 
 
It was also noted that there were no screens for the alcohol to be covered outside of 
the authorised hours. Under Section 137 of the Licensing Act 2003 this is an offence 
in that: 
 “It is an offence for a person, on any premises, to expose for sale by retail any 
alcohol in the circumstances where the sale of that alcohol would be unauthorised” 
 
I spoke with Mr Memik Cagin who is the premises licence holder and the designated 
premises supervisor and made him aware of the breach. Whilst I was there I also 
spoke on the phone to Mr Cagin’s representative from NARTS licensing department 
and made them aware of the current breach. Both parties assured me that products 
would immediately be removed and this would not be breached again. I expressed 

Page 49



  

my concern over extending licensable activity hours whilst current conditions weren’t 
being complied with.  
 
I was then made aware by London Borough of Brent Licensing inspectors that they 
had also made a consultation visit to the venue on 25th January 2014, during their 
visit they noted the following breaches: 

 
Selling high strength alcohol  
Alcohol not covered up after midnight 
Refusal/Incident log present but not filled in 
 

In view of the above it is my opinion that you are finding it difficult to comply with your 
existing conditions despite having them brought to your attention. I am therefore 
unable to agree your application at this time.   

 
 

 
 

Yours Sincerely 
 
 

 
Sam Lewis-Evans 598QK 
Licensing Constable Brent Police 

Page 50



P
age 51



P
age 52

T
his page is intentionally left blank



LBB – Premises Licence - 1470528  Page 1 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

ENVIRONMENT & NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SAFER STREETS  
BRENT CIVIC CENTRE 
ENGINEERS WAY 
WEMBLEY  
HA9 0FJ  
 
 
TEL: 020 8937 5359 
EMAIL: 
environmentandprotection@brent.gov.uk 

  

London Borough of Brent 
  

Premises Licence 

  
PART A 

This Premises Licence was granted by Brent Council, Licensing Authority for the area of the 
Borough of Brent under the Licensing Act 2003.  

 
Signed................................... 
Director of Environment and Neighbourhood 

Date: 18 December 2013  

  

Licence number 1470528  

 Licence start date: 29/03/2012 

Part 1 - Premises Details 

451- 453 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 9DY  
 

Licensable activities and the times authorised by this licence  

Supply of Alcohol: 
 

Day Start Time End Time 
Monday 08:00 00:00 
Tuesday 08:00 00:00 
Wednesday 08:00 00:00 
Thursday 08:00 00:00 
Friday 08:00 00:00 
Saturday 08:00 00:00 
Sunday 08:00 00:00 

Page 53



LBB – Premises Licence - 1470528  Page 2 

 
Whether alcohol is authorised to be supplied on or off the premises: Off  
 
  

The Opening Hours of the Premises: 
Day Start Time End Time 
Monday 08:00 00:00 
Tuesday 08:00 00:00 
Wednesday 08:00 00:00 
Thursday 08:00 00:00 
Friday 08:00 00:00 
Saturday 08:00 00:00 
Sunday 08:00 00:00 

  

Page 54



LBB – Premises Licence - 1470528  Page 3 

Part 2 
  

Details of Holder of Premises Licence: 

Name: Mr. Memik Cagin 
Address:  

Details of Designated Premises Supervisor: 

Name: Mr Memik Cagin 
Address:  
Personal Licence Number: LN/201200842 
Issuing authority: London Borough of Enfield 
 

Annexe 1 - Mandatory Conditions 

 
(a) No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when no designated premises supervisor 
has been specified in the licence or at a time when the designated premises supervisor 
does not hold a personal licence or his or her licence has been suspended. 
(b) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a 
person who holds a personal licence. 
(c) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age 
verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 
All persons present on the premises who are required to carry out a security activity must 
be licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 
 
Embedded Conditions 
 
Not applicable 
  

Annexe 2 - Conditions Consistent With the Operating Schedule 

 
1 CCTV shall be installed to Home Office Guidance standards and maintained in a good 
working condition and recordings shall be kept for 31 days and shall be made available to 
police and authorised Officers from Brent Council. 
 
2 A CCTV camera shall be installed to cover the entrance of the premises 
 
3 A sign stating ‘No proof of age - No sale’ shall be displayed at the point of sale. 
 
4 No high strength beers, lagers, and ciders above 6.5% ABV shall be stocked. 
 
5 A refusal book detailing date and time of the refused sale and the name of the person 
refusing the sale shall be kept and maintained and made available for inspection at the 
premises. 
 
6 A suitable intruder alarm complete with panic button shall be fitted and maintained. 

Page 55



LBB – Premises Licence - 1470528  Page 4 

 
7 An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available for inspection on 
request to an authorised officer of Brent Council or the Police, which will record the 
following: 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received 
(d) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or  
scanning equipment 
(e) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(f) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 
 
8 The following crime prevention measures shall be implemented: 
- A time delay safe with deposit slot and anti fishing mechanisms must be used at the 
counter till area 
- Regular robbery awareness and cash minimisation training shall be given to all staff  
 
9 A ‘Challenge 21’ policy shall be adopted and adhered to at all times. 
 

Annexe 3 - Conditions Attached After a Hearing by the Licensing 
Authority 

Not applicable  

Annexe 4 - Plans 

See attached sheet.  
 
  

  

Page 56


	Agenda
	2 Application by 'Location Cafe' for a premises licence for '232 High Road' (London, NW10 2NX) pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003
	location-cafe-application
	location-cafe-police-objection
	location-cafe-plan
	location-cafe-photos
	location-cafe-photo-two

	3 Application by Memik Cagin for a variation of the premises licence for 'Mir Food Centre' (451-453 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 9DY) pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003
	Mir-Application
	Mir-Police_Representations
	Mir-Plan
	Mir-Redacted_Licence_-_NW9_9DY


